Public Document Pack

Cheshire E@,

Council%

Cabinet Member for Leisure and Open

Spaces

Agenda

Date:
Time:

Venue:

Monday, 4th April, 2016
1.00 pm

Commiittee Suite 1,2 & 3, Westfields, Middlewich Road,
Sandbach CW11 1HZ

Apologies for Absence

Declarations of Interest

To provide an opportunity for Members and Officers to declare any disclosable pecuniary and
non-pecuniary interests in any item on the agenda.

Public Speaking Time/Open Session

In accordance with Procedure Rules Nos.11 and 35 a period of 10 minutes is allocated for
members of the public to address the meeting on any matter relevant to the work of the body
in question. Individual members of the public may speak for up to 5 minutes but the
Chairman or person presiding will decide how the period of time allocated for public speaking
will be apportioned where there are a number of speakers. Members of the public are not
required to give notice to use this facility. However, as a matter of courtesy, a period of 24
hours’ notice is encouraged.

Members of the public wishing to ask a question at the meeting should provide at least three
clear working days’ notice in writing and should include the question with that notice. This will
enable an informed answer to be given.

The Cheshire East Rights of Way Improvement Plan 2011-2026 - Implementation Plan
(Pages 1 - 58)

To consider the Implementation Plan 2015-2019 for the Cheshire East Rights of Way
Improvement Plan 2011-2026.

For requests for further information

Contact: Cherry Foreman

Tel: 01270 686463

E-Mail: cherry.foreman@cheshireeast.gov.uk with any apologies






Page 1 Agenda Item 4

CHESHIRE EAST COUNCIL

Cabinet Member for Leisure and Open Spaces

Date of Meeting: 4 April 2016

Report of: Public Rights of Way Manager

Subject/Title: Cheshire East Rights of Way Improvement Plan 2011-2026:
Implementation Plan 2015-2019

Portfolio Holder: Councillor Sam Gardner

1.0 Report Summary

1.1 This report presents the Implementation Plan for the Cheshire East Rights
of Way Improvement Plan (ROWIP) to cover the period 2015-2019.

2.0 Recommendation

2.1 That the Cheshire East Rights of Way Improvement Plan (2011-2026)
Implementation Plan for 2015-2019 be approved.

3.0 Reasons for Recommendation

3.1 A Rights of Way Improvement Plan has been compiled for the period 2015-
2019 on that basis of the prioritisation methodology approved by the Public
Rights of Way Committee on 13t December 2010. This is the second
Implementation Plan in the period 2011-2026 and is now put forward for
approval.

4.0 Wards Affected
4.1  All Wards affected.
5.0 Local Ward Members
5.1  All Local Ward Members.
6.0 Policy Implications including - Climate change
- Health
6.1  The development of the ROWIP is aligned with the economic prosperity,

quality of place, transport and health and wellbeing objectives and priorities
of the Council:



6.2

6.3

7.0

7.1

8.0

8.1

Page 2

e Cheshire East Council 3 year plan 2013-2016:
o Outcome 2 Cheshire East has a strong and resilient economy
o Outcome 4 Cheshire East is a green and sustainable place to live
o Outcome 5 People live well and for longer;
e Cheshire East Sustainable Community Strategy priority actions:
o Ensure a sustainable future
o Drive out the causes of poor health;

e Cheshire East Local Plan strategy submission version includes a
number of Policies (PG5, EG4, SC1, SC2, SE4, SE6, SE7, and CO1)
which relate to active travel, health and wellbeing and countryside
access;

e Cheshire East Visitor Economy Strategic Framework;

e Cheshire East Local Transport Plan; and,

e Emerging Cycling Strategy core responsibilities.

The role of accessible Green Infrastructure is one of increasing importance
within the growth plans for Crewe, the Science Corridor and the Northern
Gateway. Accessible greenspace contributes to the quality or
‘distinctiveness’ of a place. That in turn contributes to the economic
wellbeing of an area, offering characteristics that can hold it apart from its
neighbours and competitors. In delivering growth in the borough’s
economy, it will be important that accessible greenspace, together with the
other components of quality places, keep pace with this ambition, retaining
the characteristics that support existing success and building on those that
will help attract future prosperity.

In addition, the ROWIP is an integrated part of the Local Transport Plan.
Financial Implications

Potential funding sources, which will include external grants, are identified in
the Implementation Plan, but are not committed as the funding is unknown
and the actual projects developed may vary from those presented in the
Plan.

Legal Implications (Authorised by the Borough Solicitor)

It is a statutory duty under section 60 of the Countryside and Rights of Way
Act 2000 for every local highway authority to prepare and publish a Rights of
Way Improvement Plan. A ROWIP should contain a statement of the action
which the authority proposes to take.


http://moderngov.cheshireeast.gov.uk/ecminutes/documents/s20049/Council%203%20year%20plan%20-%20Appendix%201.pdf
http://www.cheshireeast.gov.uk/council_and_democracy/community/pace_strategic_partnerships/sustainable_community_strategy.aspx
http://www.cheshireeast.gov.uk/planning/spatial_planning/cheshire_east_local_plan/cheshire_east_local_plan.aspx
http://www.cheshireeast.gov.uk/PDF/Visitor_Economy_Strategy_January_2011.pdf
http://www.cheshireeast.gov.uk/pdf/Local-Transport-Plan-Final-Strategy-Document.pdf
http://www.cheshireeast.gov.uk/highways_and_roads/cycling_in_cheshire_east/consultation-on-the-cycling-strategy-for-cheshire-east.aspx

8.2

9.0

9.1

10.0

10.1

10.2

10.3

10.4

10.5

Page 3

Non compliance with the requirement for the full integration of the ROWIP
with the Local Transport Plan could result in criticism from statutory
monitoring bodies, agencies and local user groups.

Risk Management
No matters arising.
Background and Options

Under the Countryside and Rights of Way Act 2000, every highway
authority in England is required to prepare and publish a Rights of Way
Improvement Plan (ROWIP) for its area. The plan must then be assessed
and reviewed within ten years and at similar intervals thereafter. ROWIPs
were created to publish the authority's assessment of:

« the extent to which the local Public Rights of Way network meets the
present and future needs of the public;

« the opportunities provided by local Public Rights of Way for exercise
and other forms of open-air recreation and the enjoyment of the
local authority's area; and,

o the accessibility of local Public Rights of Way for blind or partially
sighted persons and others with mobility problems.

The ROWIP strategy for Cheshire East was developed through
consultation with residents and the wider public, Ward Members, local user
groups and parish and town councils. The strategy covers the period
2011-2026.

The ROWIP strategy is integrated into the Local Transport Plan in
recognition of walking and cycling as means of travel. The strategy is also
embedded into the Council’'s agendas of economic prosperity through
visitor economy and high quality of place, and that of health and wellbeing.

On 17" January 2011 the Portfolio Holder for Health and Wellbeing
approved the Cheshire East Rights of Way Improvement Plan 2011-2026
which sets out the strategy for this period.

ROWIPs are also required to contain a statement of the action which the
authority proposes to take for the management of local Public Rights of
Way, and for securing an improved network of those routes. Therefore,
under the ROWIP strategy there are rolling 4-year implementation plans
detailing projects through which the policies and initiatives stated in the
ROWIP will be delivered.


http://www.cheshireeast.gov.uk/pdf/ROWIP%20Final%20accessible%20for%20web.pdf

10.6

10.7

10.8

10.9

10.10

10.11

11.0

Page 4

The first ROWIP Implementation Plan 2011-2015 has expired, and the
next Implementation Plan has been prepared.

Suggestions for improvement projects are submitted by residents, Ward
Members, local user groups, community groups, parish and town councils
and officers. These suggestions are prioritised using the methodology
selected and amended by the Cheshire Local Access Forum and which was
presented to the Public Rights of Way Committee on 13t December 2010.
This methodology takes into account the benefits of the scheme, including
those of health and wellbeing, quality of place and visitor economy, in the
context of local need, under the policies and objectives of the ROWIP.

The highest priority suggestions have been selected for each category of
suggestion: walking, cycling, horse riding, transport-related and cross-
cutting projects. It is intended that these suggestions be investigated and
developed first, with the acknowledgement that some may not be feasible
and other opportunities may arise through partnerships, funding
opportunities and development sites that result in alternative projects being
taken forward.

On 13t December 2010, the Public Rights of Way Committee gave the
Green Spaces Manager the delegated powers to, in consultation with the
Chairman of the Committee, compile the Implementation Plan based on
the prioritisation methodology. The Implementation Plan was then
approved by the Portfolio Holder for Health and Wellbeing on 14t March
2011.

A new Implementation Plan has been drawn up, assessing the delivery of
the preceding Plan, and setting out the intentions of the Council in relation to

the period 2015-2019.

Monitoring and reporting shall be undertaken through annual progress
reporting to the Public Rights of Way Committee.

Access to Information

The background papers relating to this report can be inspected by
contacting the report writer:

Name: Genni Butler
Designation: Countryside Access Development Officer
Tel No: 01606 271817

Email: genni.butler@cheshireeast.gov.uk



http://www.cheshireeast.gov.uk/pdf/ROWIP%20Implementation%20Plan%202011-2015%20accessible%20for%20web.pdf
mailto:paul.mountford@cheshireeast.gov.uk

Rights of Way
Improvement Plan
2011 -2026

Implementation Plan 2015 -2019

www.cheshireeast.gov.uk/prow Cheshire East




Page 6



Page 7

The countryside of Cheshire East is famous far and wide, and is
understandably much loved by both residents and visitors. We are
fortunate in the variety of our countryside: from Cheshire’s Peak
District, through rolling dairy pastures to the canals of the Cheshire
Plain.

The benefits that access to this landscape and active travel through
it can offer, be it on foot, by bike, on horseback are plentiful: Health
and wellbeing through activity in the fresh air, community value,
attracting visitors, reduced congestion or air pollution, and the contribution that quality
places make to our prosperity. These are widely recognised as direct benefits of
investment in, and promotion of, our public rights of way and countryside access.

This document sets out the Council’s aspirations to enhance and improve countryside
access and active travel for the benefit of the residents of Cheshire East for future
generations, and for our many visitors. | encourage all involved to work together to
make the most of what access to our countryside and active travel can offer us all.

Councillor Sam Gardner

Portfolio Holder, Open Spaces

ROWIP Implementation Plan 2015-2019 1



Contents

3 ProgresSsStodate ...ttt 9

5 Statement of CtiON ... 45

List of tables
Table 1 Length of Public Rights of Way network .. 9
Table 2 Annual random 'ease of use' survey results ........ 10
Table 3 Network management tasks completed 2011-2015 ..., 11
Table 4 Legal order tasks completed 2011-2015 ..o 11
Table 5 ROWIP project achievements 2011-2012 .. 14
Table 6 ROWIP project achievements 2012-2013 ....... .. 20
Table 7 ROWIP project achievements 2013-2014 ....... w25
Table 8 ROWIP project achievements 2014-2015 ... .. 30
Table 9 Progress to date 2011-2015 - leisure walking ....... 36
Table 10 Progress to date 2011-2015 - leisure cycling .. .37
Table 11 Progress to date 2011-2015 - horse riding ... 38
Table 12 Progress to date 2011-2015 - cross cutting projects ... 39
Table 13 Progress to date 2011-2015 - transport related .. 40
Table 14 Prioritised projects 2015-2019 - leisure walking ....... 45
Table 15 Prioritised projects 2015-2019 - leisure cycling ... 46
Table 16 Prioritised projects 2015-2019 - horse riding ........ 47
Table 17 Prioritised projects 2015-2019 - cross cutting projects ... 48
Table 18 Prioritised projects 2015-2019 - transport-related .. 49

ROWIP Implementation Plan 2015-2019



Page 9

Introduction

In April 2011, Cheshire East Council published its
Rights of Way Improvement Plan (ROWIP) 2011-2026
which set out the strategy by which the Council aims
to improve Public Rights of Way (PROW) and
countryside access across the Borough.

The publication of a ROWIP is a statutory duty of the
Council under section 60 of the Countryside and Rights of Way
Rights of Way (CROW) Act 2000. The aim of a Improvement Plan

ROWIP was given as to:- 2011-2026
Cheshirga®

L
i

www.cheshireeast.gov.uk/prow

Assess the extent to which local rights of way
and other countryside access resources meet the present and likely
future needs of the public;

Assess opportunities for exercise and other forms of open air recreation
and enjoyment of the authority's area; and,

Assess the accessibility of local rights of way and other routes to blind
or partially-sighted people and others with mobility problems.

The ROWIP has 5 chapters:-

1. Introduction - an explanation of what the ROWIP is and how it was
produced;

2. Evaluation of Cheshire's ROWIP 2006-2011 - an assessment of
successes and ongoing challenges;

3. Network assessment - a description of what countryside access is
available to the public in Cheshire East;

4. Demand assessment - a description of what people want from Public
Rights of Way and countryside access at the present time and future
demand trends; and,

5. What we need to do - listing policies and initiatives through which we
aim to make improvements. These are common to the Local Transport
Plan 3 (LTP3).

The policies and initiatives stated in chapter five state what we need to do
and are repeated below. For full background details please read the ROWIP
strategy available at www.cheshireeast.gov.uk/prow.

The CROW Act also requires local authorities to prepare a statement of
action listing the projects through which improvements could be made to
Public Rights of Way and wider countryside access. These statements of
action are contained within 4-yearly implementation plans, this being the
second. National and local structures and funding mechanisms have changed
since the writing of the first implementation plan, and will continue to change.
For example, austerity measures, the development of the Local Plan and

ROWIP Implementation Plan 2015-2019 3


http://www.cheshireeast.gov.uk/pdf/ROWIP%20Final%20accessible%20for%20web.pdf

Page 10

Local Economic Plan and the revision of the Local Transport Plan have and
will affect the delivery of the aspirations set out in this document. However,
the agendas to which the following policies and initiatives are aligned are, if
anything, stronger, with increased need for sustainable travel, healthy
activities and enhanced green space.

The momentum of these agendas is being reflected within Cheshire East in
its local strategies and policies:

Cheshire East Council 3 year plan 2013-2016:

Outcome 4 Cheshire East is a green and sustainable place to live
Outcome 5 People live well and for longer;

Cheshire East Sustainable Community Strateqy priority actions:

Ensure a sustainable future
Drive out the causes of poor health;

Cheshire East Local Plan strategy submission version includes a number
of Policies (PG5, EG4, SC1, SC2, SE4, SE6, SE7, and CO1) which
relate to active travel, health and wellbeing and countryside access;
and,

Emerging Cycling Strategy core responsibilities.

The role of accessible Green Infrastructure is one of increasing importance
within the growth plans for Crewe, the Science Corridor and the Northern
Gateway. Accessible greenspace contributes to the quality or ‘distinctiveness’
of a place. That in turn contributes to the economic wellbeing of an area,
offering characteristics that can hold it apart from its neighbours and
competitors. In delivering growth in the borough’s economy, it will be
important that accessible greenspace, together with the other components
of quality places, keep pace with this ambition, retaining the characteristics
that support existing success and building on those that will help attract future
prosperity.

ROWIP Implementation Plan 2015-2019


http://moderngov.cheshireeast.gov.uk/ecminutes/documents/s20049/Council%203%20year%20plan%20-%20Appendix%201.pdf
http://www.cheshireeast.gov.uk/council_and_democracy/community/pace_strategic_partnerships/sustainable_community_strategy.aspx
http://www.cheshireeast.gov.uk/planning/spatial_planning/cheshire_east_local_plan/cheshire_east_local_plan.aspx
http://www.cheshireeast.gov.uk/highways_and_roads/cycling_in_cheshire_east/consultation-on-the-cycling-strategy-for-cheshire-east.aspx

Page 11

Policy H2: Promotion of active travel and healthy activities

Work in partnership to promote walking, cycling and horse riding as active
travel options and healthy activities

Promote opportunities and facilities: highlight opportunities for active travel
and healthy activity by promoting new and existing facilities using appropriate
media such as signage, walking and cycling maps, leaflets, events, internet sites
and other technologies. This will focus on routes and sites that are accessible
by modes of active travel or public transport (such as important leisure routes
or key employment locations) and will involve working with health agencies, help
to promote active travel and other activities as a lifestyle choice for all ages
amongst our residents and visitors. Close working with the Peak District National
Park Authority and other visitor organisations to provide helpful information and
promote a consistent and warm welcome to visitor attractions.

Organised walks, rides and activities: undertake and support organised walks,
rides and other activities which encourage people to partake in healthy activities
that they may not otherwise have the confidence or knowledge to do.

Public information on the public rights of way network: enhance the accuracy
of the Definitive Map and Statement to provide an up to date and accessible
format. This will facilitate changes to the network, through the necessary legal
processes, for the benefit of landowners and the public.

ROWIP Implementation Plan 2015-2019



Page 12

Policy H3: Public rights of way and green infrastructure

Protect and enhance our public rights of way and green infrastructure and
endeavour to create new links where beneficial for health, safety or access
to green spaces

Sustainable access to green spaces: aim to improve access for all members
of society, including disabled people, to and within green infrastructure, including
the public rights of way network, town parks, public open space, the Peak District
National Park and country parks.

Link key services: seek to improve the routes and green infrastructure that link
key services (e.g. schools, community centres and tourism destinations) by
routes and green infrastructure such as canal towpaths. Investments will include
improving surfacing and signage, where appropriate, and creating links where
gaps exist in the network.

Leisure routes for cyclists, horse riders and walkers: endeavour to create
and enhance leisure routes for cyclists, horse riders and walkers on the public
rights of way network and highway network.

Litter, environmental health, safety and security: encourage users to reduce
litter and will improve environmental health, safety and other security concerns
through education and clean-up campaigns.

Country parks, town parks and public open space: ensure adequate
maintenance and improvement of land within the Council's ownership that is
used for formal and informal public access and recreation, at a local level and
sites which are tourism destinations.

ROWIP Implementation Plan 2015-2019



Page 13

Policy S7: Walking

Work with stakeholders to improve facilities for walking so that it is
attractive for shorter journeys

Footway and footpath improvements: promote improvements to the condition
of highway footways, footpaths and public rights of way. In particular, support
the development, on safety grounds, of low cost measures, such as verge
improvements. Consideration will also be given to resurfacing, removal of litter
and other environmental health issues, provision of lighting and seating, where
appropriate, and the removal of barriers and obstacles to open up more routes
for more people, particularly those with pushchairs and disabled people. This
initiative will also recognise the environmental and biodiversity benefits of creating
attractive green spaces alongside walkways and cycleways.

New walking routes: support the development of new routes where required
but not currently provided, such as on rural roads and in villages, and support
initiatives to connect up the highway footway and public rights of way networks
for greater pedestrian movement, including links to the canal system.

Pedestrian crossing points: support the provision of safe crossing points, wide
pavements, dropped kerbs and other pedestrian facilities where necessary to
encourage travel on foot and improve perceptions of safety along routes and
make routes more accessible to disabled people.

Route signing: promote the signing of dedicated on- and off-road pedestrian
routes to encourage greater use by pedestrians. Initiatives will include the
provision of signs relaying destination, distance and time information.

ROWIP Implementation Plan 2015-2019



Page 14

Policy S8: Cycling

Work with stakeholders to improve facilities for cycling so that it is
attractive for shorter journeys

New cycle routes: seek to provide appropriate highways improvements (e.g.
on-road cycle lanes or wide nearside lanes) and off-road routes to make
commuter cycling a safe and quick alternative to car use. Focus will be on
creating a network of joined-up routes catering for a range of cycle skill levels
and will capitalise on the potential of the canal system for cyclists.

Junction and route improvements for cyclists: promote the provision of filter
lanes, advanced stop lines and toucan crossings, where applicable, to prioritise
and enhance the safety of cyclists at junctions. Undertake surfacing and lighting
improvements on existing key links. Such measures will be incorporated into
the design of new or amended highways, as well as retrospectively to existing
road junctions, where possible.

Cycle facilities: work to provide greater access to cycling facilities (e.g. cycle
parking, changing facilities, showers, hire & ride schemes) in town centres, at
community facilities (e.g. libraries) and service and employment centres.

Route signing: encourage a greater uptake of cycling through the provision of
route signs which state the destination, distance and journey time to selected
destinations, to complement other sources of information.

ROWIP Implementation Plan 2015-2019



3 Progress to date

Progress to date

3.1 During the 4 years since the publication of the first ROWIP implementation
plan, the Public Rights of Way team have delivered numerous improvements
to meet the aspirations of the public and local organisations. Indeed, the
everyday and ongoing work of the whole Public Rights of Way team, spanning
network management and legal order processes, improves the public rights
of way network.

3.2 Each year, an annual report is prepared to review the work of the Public
Rights of Way team. This report includes work delivered under the ROWIP.
The annual reports can be viewed via www.cheshireeast.gov.uk/prow, and
elements are summarised below.

Length of network and availability to different users

3.3 In 2010, the length of the PROW network in Cheshire East totalled 1934.5km.
That figure has been increased to 1947.2km as a result of the creation of
new PROW and the diversion of existing routes, some cases of which will
result in a net increase in the length of the path, whilst other cases may result
in a net decrease.

3.4 This increase in length has been seen in the categories of Public Footpath
and Public Bridleway, both of which are available to pedestrians. Horse
riders and cyclists, who can use each of the categories of PROW other than
Public Footpaths, can now use 7.9% of the network, compared to 7.6% in
2010. This proportion remains low despite a number of relatively long Public
Bridleways that were created during the first Implementation Plan.

Table 1 Length of Public Rights of Way network

Category of PROW Length in Length

2010 (km) in 2015
(km)

Public Footpath 1787 1793

Public Bridleway 104 112

Restricted Byway 36 36

Byway Open to All Traffic 7 7

Total 1935 1947

ROWIP Implementation Plan 2015-2019 9


http://www.cheshireeast.gov.uk/leisure,_culture_and_tourism/public_rights_of_way/improving_public_rights_of_way.aspx

3 Progress to date

Ease of use of the PROW network

3.5 The Public Rights of Way team undertakes path inspections on the basis of
the former national Best Value Performance Indicator 178: the percentage
of paths deemed ‘easy to use’. Each year, a random survey of 5% of the
PROW network is undertaken to establish a benchmark indicator, although
it is recognised that it is not a full quality audit. 'Ease of use' takes in to
account the availability of the route (i.e. not obstructed), and that the statutory
signposting is in place. The results returned for Cheshire East Council are
shown below.

Table 2 Annual random 'ease of use' survey results

2008 69
2009 84
2010 85
2011 84
2012 80
2013 83
2014 77
Average 80

Benchmarking against other authorities

3.6 Two benchmarking exercises undertaken in 2012/2013 compared
authorities from around the country. The full reports, which can be read on
the PROW webpages at www.cheshireeast.gov.uk/prow, found that the
Public Rights of Way team at Cheshire East Council works efficiently by:-

e delivering a joint-second highest ‘ease of use’ of network score;

e working with a below-average budget per km length of network;

e securing some of the lowest per item costs for furniture materials and
installation;

e maintaining a manageable waiting list of Definitive Map Modification
Order applications by progressing through casework efficiently; and,

e delivering a sustainable future workload projection that balances public
expectations, resources and statutory duties for the determination of
Definitive Map Modification Order applications.

10 ROWIP Implementation Plan 2015-2019


http://www.cheshireeast.gov.uk/leisure,_culture_and_tourism/public_rights_of_way/improving_public_rights_of_way.aspx

Network management and legal order tasks

3.7

3 Progress to date

As described previously, the Public Rights of Way team work can be

categorised into network management and legal order processes. The tables
below summarise the work undertaken during the period of the last
Implementation Plan, 2011-2015, both of which describe an increasing
workload and output.

Table 3 Network management tasks completed 2011-2015

201112 2012-13 2013-14 2014-2015 Total
Fingerpost signs erected 228 299 270 231 1028
Enforcement notices issued 16 12 17 17 62
to landowners/managers
Enforcement warnings
issued to 27 30 33 25 115
landowners/managers
Stiles installed 260 181 252 251 944
Kissing gates installed 18 73 89 81 261
Bridleway gates installed 9 4 6 11 30
Pedestrian gates installed 17 22 17 16 72
Bridges installed 38 31 59 51 179
Length of network receiving
annual vegetation 123km | 131km = 179km 125km 558km
maintenance
Issues on network reported 529 509 611 661 2310
by public

Table 4 Legal order tasks completed 2011-2015

201112 2012-13 2013-14

2014-15 Total

Schedule 14 DMMO 2 2 2 1 7
applications determined

§chedgle j4 applications under 9 10 10 7 N/a
investigation

Schedule 14 applications 29 19 18 23 N/a
registered

ROWIP Implementation Plan 2015-2019

11



3 Progress to date

Anomalies resolved 6 0 0 2 N/a
Anomalies waiting list 260+ 260+ 280+ 400+ N/a
Planning applications 102 201 215 937 755
responded to
Search requests responded to 60 65 91 142 358
Section 31 deposits registered 6 8 3 1 18
Temporary.and emergency 33 52 46 52 183
closure notices processed
Gating orders processed 0 0 0 0 0
Public path orders confirmed 14 20 10 13 57
Public path orders in progress 28 20 18 17 N/a
Public path orders waiting list 14 28 28 43 N/a
Loce_ll G_overnment Act Deed of 0 2 3 0 5
Dedications made
Town and Country Planning
Act public path orders 2 3 2 5 12
confirmed
Town and Country Planning
Act public path orders in 3 3 5 5 N/a
progress

Usage data

3.8 It is recognised that the Council, as is common to other local authorities, had

little in the way of data on PROW usage. The PROW team are therefore
compiling data from available sources including environmental impact
assessments undertaken ahead of new road schemes. A small number of
automatic counters are in place on routes such as on the Connect2 Crewe
to Nantwich Greenway and further automatic counters have been installed
on the PROW network through which further datasets on PROW usage can
be collated.

3.9 Data on the usage of PROW and wider countryside access routes can provide
an indication of the value of the network to our residents and visitors. As a
key example, from the usage of a toucan crossing on the Connect2 Crewe

12 ROWIP Implementation Plan 2015-2019



3 Progress to date

to Nantwich Greenway where it crosses the A530 Middlewich Road, it is
estimated that over 40,000 journeys are made on the route every year.
Whilst other routes will receive fewer users, the network is highly valued, as
was clearly indicated in research for the ROWIP strategy.

Working with volunteers

3.10

3.1

The Public Rights of Way team is ably assisted by a range of volunteers by
being the 'eyes and ears' on the PROW network. Many individuals and user
groups report in issues that they come across on the network in order that
these can be resolved. Some of these reports are on an 'as arising basis'
and others, submitted by the Ramblers local groups, take the form of more
formal inspections of the network.

In addition, volunteers form a vital role in keeping the PROW network open
and available through minor vegetation cutting and putting up waymark disks
to guide users along the routes. 133 individuals have registered to carry a
Letter of Authority to undertake these tasks whilst out walking or riding. A
small number of local groups also arrange working parties on their local
network, in close liaision with the PROW team, to undertake practical tasks
including step replacements.

ROWIP projects

3.12

In addition to the above work, the PROW team deliver improvement projects
which aim to meet the policies and initiatives of the ROWIP and which have
been logged as aspirations of local communities. Many of these are delivered
through the network management role of the team. Other, often larger scale
projects, are frequently delivered in partnership with colleagues across the
Council's departments, including those managing the Countryside Ranger
Service, Cheshire East Highways, Assets and the Parks Development Team
(now part of Ansa). Further, many projects are also delivered in partnership
with, and sometimes driven by, local volunteer groups and parish and town
councils and a range of other local and national bodies, and we are grateful
to these groups and individuals for their work. The tables below summarise
the ROWIP projects delivered during the term of the first Implementation
Plan.

ROWIP Implementation Plan 2015-2019 13



3 Progress to date

Table 5 ROWIP project achievements 2011-2012

Policy ROWIP Achievements 2011-2012
Ref. Ref.

H2 T84 Stapeley Footpath No. 1
e A safe links to school project funded through the Local
H3 Transport Plan’s cycling projects with match funding from
S Sustrans.
y e The path runs through a park area in a housing estate and
S8 connects to the local primary school, shops and other
facilities.

e  Previously muddy and rough surfaced, the path is now
wider and tarmaced for all-year use.

e Cycle shelters were installed at the school and publicity
raised to encourage their use.

H2 T82/95 LTP Cycling Schemes
e National Cycle Network routes 55 & 73 signage in
H3 T99 Congleton.
e  Cycle route link from the new Alderley Edge bypass to
S8 T43 A :
stra Zeneca employment site.
e Leighton Greenway in Crewe.
H2 T24 Pickmere Footpath No. 7
e Asafelinks to school project in partnership with Pickmere
H3 Parish Plan and part funded by Cheshire West and
Chester Council.
= e The path runs from Pickmere village to the local primary
school in Wincham and avoids a busy road.
e Previously un-surfaced, the path now has a compacted
stone surface for all-year use.
H2 W73 Wilmslow Footpath Nos. 89 and 134
e A path linking housing with the countryside and also used
H3 by an annual sponsored run.
e A compacted stone surface and steps were installed to
resolve the muddy surface and slope problems.
H2 W69 Wistaston Joey-the Swan access

e Aninaccessible restriction to park land along the Wistaston
H3 Brook.

s7 e Access was improved through liaison between the
Connect2 Crewe to Nantwich Greenway Stakeholder
Group and Parks team.

14 ROWIP Implementation Plan 2015-2019



3 Progress to date

Achievements 2011-2012

H2 T100 Connect2 Crewe to Nantwich Greenway
e The development of a traffic-free cycle route between the
H3 two towns, funded by Sustrans and developer
contributions.
= e Led by our Highways Department and monitored by a
S8 Stakeholder Group, the project has already delivered cycle
routes within Crewe and Nantwich towns.
e The remaining link to be established as a Public Bridleway
for pedestrians, cyclists and horse riders to use.
e Planning, Commons Land and Village Green applications
submitted.
e Preparation of a creation agreement for a new Public
Bridleway section to link the Crewe and Nantwich sections
of the route.
H2 C2 Congleton Bridleway No. 34
e Resolved drainage issues on Public Bridleway which leads
H3 from Buglawton estate onto the Macclesfield Canal
towpath.
H2 W74 Alderley Edge Bypass
e A stone surfaced path was installed to connect the rural
H3 footpath network and pedestrian overbridge with the
S roadside cycle track, as suggested by consultees.
y e Delivered through a Cheshire East Highways project.
H2 T56 Poynton Footpath No. 30 and Adlington No. 76
e A safe links to school project funded by Sustrans and
H3 delivered by Economic Development in partnership with
Poynton High School and Poynton Village Improvement
S7 Scheme.
S8 e Routes have been widened, surfaced and drainage issues
resolved.
e Destination signage and interpretation boards to
encourage active travel have been installed.
H3 W15 Road Safety Schemes
e Consultees have raised a number of locations of road
W16 safety concern, including those on promoted routes.

ROWIP Implementation Plan 2015-2019 15



3 Progress to date

ROWIP Achievements 2011-2012

W18 e Road Safety Officers in Highways consulted to assess
risk and possible mitigation measures.
W20 e Requests to adjacent landowners for permissive paths so
as to remove road walking or improve crossing locations
ez have been made.
H16
H17
H2 X15 Long Distance Horse and Cycle Ride
e Initiated by Laureen Roberts of North Cheshire Riders,
H3 this project sees the development of Cheshire East's first
long distance horse ride.
e Designed to offer a long distance ride bringing benefits to
the local economy.
e The route, also being promoted to cyclists, consists of 2
loops: the Cheshire Cheese Loop and the Heritage Loop.
e Funded through a grants from the British Equestrian
Federation, the British Horse Society, Hoof! Cheshire and
contributions from local riding groups.
H2 W75 Poynton Footpath No. 7 — Princes Incline
e A popular wooded and relatively long route leading from
H3 Poynton village centre towards the Middlewood Way and
Macclesfield Canal towpath.
e The only stile on the route was replaced by a medium
mobility kissing gate in agreement with the landowner.
e A further section of the surface of the route was improved
to resolve drainage issues and a muddy surface.
H2 W67 Nantwich Riverside Loop
e A promoted, circular walking route linking the riverside
H3 X14 and canal and encouraging people to explore that little bit
further.
e Delivered with partners including Nantwich Riverside
Stakeholders, British Waterways and multiple local
organisations.
e Partfunded by WREN grant.
e The project improved the route, installed signage and also
improved disabled access to the lakeside path.

16 ROWIP Implementation Plan 2015-2019



Policy
Ref.

3 Progress to date

ROWIP Achievements 2011-2012

Ref.

A launch event was held in May 2011 with associated
publicity and an evaluation has been conducted on the
value of the route and leaflet.

A revised leaflet was published in the summer of 2011.
Additional signage as suggested was installed to draw
attention to the Loop from the northern riverside area.
Planting of saplings to strengthen the towpath hedge
completed the project.

H2
H3

H20

Ollerton Bridleway No. 6

A long route in a popular livery stable area, suffering from
poor surface conditions in winter rendering it unusable.
Surface improvements made to create a year-round route.
75% funded by contributions from local riders and riders’
groups.

H2

H3

X15

Discover Cheshire

www.discovercheshire.co.uk.

Website promoting routes, sites and visitor economy
facilities in the countryside.

Partners include Visitor Economy, CWAC, Mersey Forest.
Many new walking and horse riding routes added including
Knutsford Rail Walks and Wistaston Community
Opportunities Group’s walk.

H2

H3

X7
X15

W75

Accessibility

Various stiles across Cheshire East have been replaced
with gates with landowners’ permission.

This has included some promoted routes which are now
stile-free, for example Chelford village walk and Ashley
Rail Trail.

H2
H3
S7
S8

n/a

Planning Applications, Pre-Applications and Local Plan

Planning applications are commented upon from the
perspective of active travel and leisure walking, cycling
and horseriding.

Aspirations for active travel and leisure routes are compiled
for large developments at the pre-application stage and
thereafter.

ROWIP Implementation Plan 2015-2019 17


http://www.discovercheshire.co.uk

3 Progress to date

Policy ROWIP Achievements 2011-2012
Ref. Ref.
e Developer contributions through S106 agreements and
unilateral undertakings are sought and delivered.
e Input from Public Rights of Way and Countryside
perspective into Local Plan.
H2 X15 Publicity to promote walking, cycling and horse riding
e Press releases achieved for various projects and events
H3 including National Walking Month and National Bike Week.
e Feature article appeared in Cheshire East News on the
Nantwich Riverside Loop.
e  Astbury Mere Walk4Life route ranked as the 6" most
visited route on national website.
S7 n/a Local Sustainable Transport Fund
e A Dbid has been prepared by Highways to this national
S8 government fund, focusing on smarter travel within Crewe.
e ROWIP suggestions and active travel included in bid.
S7 n/a A556 and SEMMMS road schemes
e Input of aspirations and comments on designs given from
S8 the perspective of active travel and leisure walking, cycling
and horseriding.
H2 X15 Walks for All Leaflet
e A popular leaflet describing accessible walks across
H3 Cheshire East.
e Revised and republished in the summer of 2011.
H2 n/a Mapping
e Assistance with mapping provided to Cheshire East
H3 departments, for example for countryside grant
S7 applications, and third sector groups producing walks
leaflets.
S8
H2 n/a Rights of Way Consultative Group
e Preparation of reports and meetings.
H3 e Establishment of register of volunteers and issuance of
s7 Letters of Authority.
S8
18 ROWIP Implementation Plan 2015-2019




H2
H3
S7
S8

3 Progress to date

ROWIP Achievements 2011-2012

Ref.

n/a

Cheshire Local Access Forum

e  Secretariat duties for Forum, a voluntary body which
advises the Council on matters relating to countryside
access.

Walkers on the Nantwich Riverside Loop launch event

ROWIP Implementation Plan 2015-2019 19



3 Progress to date

Table 6 ROWIP project achievements 2012-2013

H2 T100 Connect2 Crewe to Nantwich Greenway
e The development of a traffic-free cycle route between the
H3 two towns, funded by Sustrans’ Connect2 project.
s7 e Led by Cheshire East Highways with the support of a
Stakeholder Group.
S8 e Central link between the towns established as a Public

Bridleway via a creation agreement with landowner.
e Official opening event held on first day of spring with 100
people attending and press publicity.

H2, H3 X7 Knutsford Rail Walks Leaflet Revision
e Revision of leaflet with Local Area Partnership and Mid
Cheshire Rail Users’ Association.
e Includes improved maps and directions to assist walkers.

H2 W54 Goostrey Path North
e  Working with Goostrey Footpath Group and Cheshire
H3 Farms Service to achieve long-held aspiration to create

new Public Footpaths linking Goostrey village with the
wider Public Rights of Way network.

e Part-funded by Goostrey Footpath Group.

e The Footpath Group are publishing a leaflet incorporating
the new route into circular walk and have an official
launched planned.

H2 various Paths for Communities Fund
e Advice and assistance to prospective applicants for Natural
H3 England’s Paths for Communities fund.
e  Successful applications need to establish new Public Rights
of Way.

e Dane Meadow project in Holmes Chapel, see above,
awarded grant.

H2 T85 Sandbach Footpath No. 33
e Surfacing of an urban Footpath to create a year-round
H3 walking route.

e The route links housing with convenience store and forms
a direct, off-road link towards the town centre for local
residents.

e Includes destination signage to encourage use.

S7

20 ROWIP Implementation Plan 2015-2019



H2
H3
S7
S8

H2

H3

H3

H2
H3
S7

125

X12

X15

W15
W16
W18
W20
W22
H16
H17

Various
X7

X15
W75

3 Progress to date

Dane Meadow Access Improvements

Advice and assistance to Dane Meadow Programme Board
in development of externally-funded project to improve
access within Dane Meadow public open space in Holmes
Chapel.

Portfolio Holder and Committee approval secured to create
new Public Rights of Way protecting public access for
perpetuity.

Long Distance Horse and Cycle Ride

Initiated by Laureen Roberts of North Cheshire Riders, this
project sees the development of Cheshire East’s first long
distance horse ride.

Designed to offer a long distance ride bringing benefits to
the local economy.

The route, also being promoted to cyclists, consists of 2
loops: the Cheshire Cheese Loop and the Heritage Loop.
Funded through a grant from the British Equestrian
Federation, the British Horse Society, Hoof! Cheshire and
contributions from local riding groups.

2012-2013 saw the signage and publicity for the Heritage
Loop route.

Road Safety Schemes

Consultees have raised a number of locations of road
safety concern, including those on promoted routes.
Road Safety Officers in Highways consulted to assess risk
and possible mitigation measures.

Requests to adjacent landowners for permissive paths so
as to remove road walking or improve crossing locations
have been made, although unsuccessful to date.
Warning triangles for drivers installed at promoted route
crossing points.

Accessibility Improvements to Public Rights of Way
Network

Replacement of stiles with more accessible gates;
Wilmslow Footpath No. 70 — improvements to walking route
to schools;

Aston by Budworth Footpath No. 3 — surface improvements;

ROWIP Implementation Plan 2015-2019 21



3 Progress to date

H2
H3
S7
S8

S7
S8

H2

22

T1,X10
T45
T2

W27

various

various

Adlington Footpath No. 52 — surface improvements and
fencing;

Alderley Edge Footpath No. 7 — boardwalk construction
and surfacing;

Disley Footpath No. 39 — surface improvements and
fencing;

Disley Footpath No. 50 — drainage and surface
improvements;

Lyme Handley Footpath No. 8 — revetment works and
surfacing works;

Wilmslow Restricted Byway No. 12 — surface
improvements;

Wilmslow Footpath No. 19 — boardwalk construction;
Wilmslow Footpath No. 43 — surface improvements;
Sutton Bridleway No. 28 — installation of a bridge over an
incised stream where previously there was none; and,
Bollington Footpath Nos. 30 & 31 — re-laying uneven paving
stones and improvement of drainage on popular path along
Kerridge Ridge.

Assistance to Local User Groups

Advice and assistance to local user groups in their planning
of access improvements and external funding bids,
including:

Disley Footpath Society towpath improvement project;
Bollington Town Council and Canal and Rivers Trust for
towpath improvements and links to the towpath in the town;
Chelford Village Implementation Plan to improve access
to village community hall and facilities including a new
Public Right of Way;

Sandbach Brook Wood path project;

South East Cheshire Cycling Action Group;

Henbury Parish Council permissive paths project; and,
Church Minshull Parish Council permissive path project.

Local Sustainable Transport Fund

Successful result for Cheshire East’s bid to this national
government fund, focusing on smarter travel within Crewe.
ROWIP suggestions and active travel included.

Planning Applications, Pre-Applications and Local Plan

ROWIP Implementation Plan 2015-2019



H3
S7
S8

H2
H3
S7
S8

H2
H3
S7
S8

H2
H3
S7
S8

H2

H3

X15

n/a

n/a

T82/95

T43

3 Progress to date

Planning applications are commented upon from the
perspective of active travel and leisure walking, cycling
and horseriding, putting forward ROWIP aspirations.
Developer contributions secured through section 106
agreements and unilateral undertakings.

Input from Public Rights of Way and Countryside into Local
Plan.

Publicity to promote walking, cycling and horse riding

Press releases achieved for various projects and events
including National Walking Month and the launch of the
new Bollin Valley Cycle Trail for National Bike Week and
the opening of the Connect2 Crewe to Nantwich Greenway.
Twitter and Facebook feeds for all news items and
additions of routes to Discover Cheshire website.
Re-design of waymarks to include text to indicate status
of Public Right of Way.

Mapping

Assistance with mapping provided to Cheshire East
departments, including the Countryside Ranger Service
for grant applications and management plans.
Assistance with mapping for third sector groups producing
walks leaflets.

Mapping for London 2012 Olympic Torch Relay route,
homecoming events and ancillary requirements.

Plotting of all promoted routes onto CAMS GIS mapping
database for ease of identification of issues and routes
affected by planning applications and temporary closures.

Local Access Forum

Secretariat duties for Forum, a voluntary body which
advises the Council on matters relating to countryside
access.

Recruitment advertising, selection and training for new
Cheshire East Local Access Forum.

Local Transport Plan Cycling Schemes

Cycle route link from the new Alderley Edge bypass to
Astra Zeneca employment site.

ROWIP Implementation Plan 2015-2019 23



3 Progress to date

S8 T83 e Extension of Leighton Greenway in Crewe.
e Formalisation of cycle route between Solly Crescent and
Newcastle Road, Congleton.

S7 various A556, SEMMMS and Crewe Green Link Road Schemes
e Input of ROWIP aspirations and comments on designs
S8 given from the perspective of active travel and leisure

walking, cycling and horseriding.

H2 X15 Discover Cheshire Website
e www.discovercheshire.co.uk.
H3 e Website promoting routes, sites and visitor economy

facilities in the countryside.
e Partners include Visitor Economy, CWAC, Mersey Forest.
e New walking, cycling and horse riding routes added
including the 2™ in the Getting to Know Willaston series,
the Bollin Valley Way, the Bollin Valley Cycle Trail and 3
walks from the It's All About Alsager Series and 2 walks
from the Hassall Green Explorer leaflet.

H2 n/a Rights of Way Consultative Group

e  Preparation of reports and meetings.
H3 e Management of register of volunteers and issuance of
s7 Letters of Authority.

e Launch of pilot volunteer network survey to gather path
S8 furniture and surface information in 5 parishes and input

that data into CAMS GIS mapping database for use by
officers initially, and, in the long term, by the public via
Interactive Mapping on the Council’s website.

Cheshire Ea’,.‘s%\ Q
Council

Cheshire Eas

Council

24 ROWIP Implementation Plan 2015-2019


http://www.discovercheshire.co.uk

3 Progress to date

Table 7 ROWIP project achievements 2013-2014

Policy ROWIP Achievements 2013-2014

Ref. Ref.
H2 X7 Walks for All leaflet revision

e Revision of leaflet suggesting 10 easy access walks in the
H3 borough.

e  Provides full accessibility information including parking,
public transport, gates, steps, gradients and toilets.

e Revised in partnership with Countryside Ranger Service.

e Includes improved maps and directions to assist walkers.

e Proving popular with rapid uptake by libraries, visitor
information centres and other outlets.

H2 W84 Advice to local user groups
_ e Advice and assistance to local user groups in their planning
H3 Various of access improvements and external funding bids,
including:
= e e  Church Minshull Parish Council seeking a circular walk
S8 encompassing the canal towpath: access between the

towpath and adjacent Footpath is to be improved by the
Canal and River Trust as they undertake bridge works,

e  South East Cheshire Cycling Action Group seeking to make
paths available for cycling,

e East Cheshire Ramblers in seeking permissive path at
Charles Head, Kettleshulme.

H2 X15 Publicity to promote walking, cycling and horse riding
e Press releases issued for projects underway and

H3 completed.

s7 e Newsletters, Twitter and Facebook feeds for all news

items.

S8

H2 n/a Congleton Footpath No. 10
e Using s106 planning contributions secured to deliver

H3 improvements in the vicinity of developments.

e Surfacing part of an urban Footpath, Congleton No. 10, to
create a year-round walking route.

e The route links residential areas with Astbury Mere Country
Park and forms an off-road link towards the town centre.

e Includes destination signage to encourage usage and a
more accessible gate arrangement in response to local
requests.

S7

ROWIP Implementation Plan 2015-2019 25



3 Progress to date

Policy ROWIP Achievements 2013-2014
Ref. Ref.

H2 T10 Local Transport Plan cycling schemes
e Lacey Green, Wilmslow: improvement of paths between
H3 T92 Lacey Green and Pownall Park areas of Wilmslow, linking

to the new multi-user route through the Carrs park.
e Macon Meadows, Crewe: improvement of paths for shared
S8 n/a use.
e Townsend Road to Thames Close, Congleton: improving
accessibility between town centre and railway station.
e Victoria Avenue, Crewe: Cycle Safety Fund scheme.

S7 T95

H2 T25 Dane Meadow access improvements
e Projectto improve access within Dane Meadow public open
H3 space in Holmes Chapel. Externally-funded via Natural

England’s Paths for Communities Fund.

= e  Working with Holmes Chapel Partnership, Parish Council

S8 and Cheshire East Council Asset Management Service.

e Portfolio Holder and Committee approval secured to create
nearly 1km of new Footpaths and Bridleway, protecting
public access for perpetuity.

e Maintenance agreement entered into with Parish Council
to cover future path management.

e Legal process completed to create new public rights of
way.

e New surfacing, steps, signage and interpretation installed
to improve access, including disabled access to the flat
area of the site.

H2 n/a Mapping
e Assistance with mapping provided to Cheshire East
H3 departments, including the Countryside Ranger Service,
for grant applications and management plans.
S7 ; . . : .
e Assistance with mapping for third sector groups producing
S8 walks leaflets.
H2 T9 The Carrs, Wilmslow, multi-user route
e Project to improve access within the Carrs public open
H3 space in Wilmslow. Externally-funded via Natural
S7 England’s Paths for Communities Fund.

e  Working with Bollin Valley Partnership, Parks Development,
S8 the Friends of the Carrs and Cheshire East Council Asset
Management Service.

26 ROWIP Implementation Plan 2015-2019



3 Progress to date

Policy ROWIP Achievements 2013-2014

Ref. Ref.

e Portfolio Holder and Committee approval secured to create
nearly 900 metres of new Public Bridleway, protecting
public access for perpetuity.

e Legal process completed to create new public right of way.

e New surfacing installed to improve access along over 1100
metres of Public Rights of Way.

e New route ties in with Ramblers’ volunteer group clearance
work on Public Footpath in the Carrs and improved cycle
route linking Lacey Green with Pownall Park areas of the

town.
H2 Various = Accessibility improvements to public rights of way network
e Various surface improvement projects, including:
H3 o  Wilmslow Restricted Byway No. 12:
s7 e  Wilmslow Footpath Nos. 43, 111 and 113;
e Disley Bridleway Nos. 34 and 44A,;
e Disley Footpath No. 28;
e Aston by Budworth Bridleway No. 1;
e Aston by Budworth Footpath No. 15;
e  Mobberley Bridleway No. 99 ‘Hop Path’ surface
improvements using developer contribution; and,
e  Wybunbury Footpath No. 4
S7 n/a Local Sustainable Transport Fund
e Continued delivery of active travel infrastructure and
S8 promotional schemes focusing on smarter travel within
Crewe.
e Subsequent ‘LSTF2’ application submitted as part of
borough-wide Strategic Economic Partnership Local Growth
Fund application.
e Active travel route improvement suggestions collated under
ROWIP included in submission.
H2 n/a Planning applications and Local Plan
e Planning applications are commented upon from the
H3 perspective of active travel and leisure walking, cycling
S7 and horseriding, putting forward logged ROWIP aspirations.

e Developer contributions sought and secured through

S8 section 106 agreements and unilateral undertakings.

e Input from Public Rights of Way and Countryside into new
Cheshire East Local Plan strategy and infrastructure plans.

ROWIP Implementation Plan 2015-2019 27



3 Progress to date

Policy ROWIP Achievements 2013-2014

Ref. Ref.
H2 T37 Crewe Footpath Nos. 3 & 36 Cycle Track Order

e Development of ROWIP suggestion to upgrade status of
H3 a Footpath to cycle track to regularise current usage of
S8 route.

e Route runs from residential areas of Crewe and village
beyond towards town centre.

e  Project in partnership with Cheshire East Highways and
Local Area Partnership.

H2 Various | Road schemes

e Input of ROWIP aspirations.
H3 e Assessment of legal impacts of proposals on Public Rights
s7 of Way network.

e Comments from the perspective of active travel and leisure
S8 walking, cycling and horseriding, on designs for road
scheme including:

e A556 Bowdon Environmental Improvement Scheme;

e SEMMMS A6 to Manchester Airport Relief Road;

e Congleton Link Road;

e Poynton Relief Road; and,

e Crewe Green Link Road.

H2 X15 Discover Cheshire website

e www.discovercheshire.co.uk.

H3 e Website promoting walking, cycling and horse riding routes.

e Also highlights nearby visitor economy facilities in the
countryside, such as refreshment stops and
accommodation.

e Partners include Visitor Economy team, Marketing
Cheshire, Cheshire West and Chester Council and the
Mersey Forest.

e Website being redeveloped to be mobile compatible and
combined with other websites to act as the ‘one-stop shop’
for visitors to Cheshire.

H2 n/a Local Access Forum
e  Secretariat duties for Cheshire East Local Access Forum,
H3 a statutory body of volunteers which advises the Council
S7 and other organisations on matters relating to countryside
access.
S8 e Priorities identified as safety on rural lanes, publicity of the

Forum’s work and accessibility of the countryside.

28 ROWIP Implementation Plan 2015-2019


http://www.discovercheshire.co.uk
http://www.cheshireeast.gov.uk/leisure,_culture_and_tourism/public_rights_of_way/local_access_forum.aspx

3 Progress to date

Policy ROWIP Achievements 2013-2014

Ref.

Ref.

Registered interest party in Planning Inspectorate’s
consideration of A556 road scheme and extensive liaison
with Highways Agency.

Support offered for applications to Natural England’s Paths
for Communities projects.

First annual report published and promoted.

H2
H3
S7
S8

n/a

Rights of Way Consultative Group

Preparation of reports and meetings.

Management of register of 193 volunteers and issuance
of Letters of Authority for volunteers helping with
waymarking and vegetation clearance.

Implementation of improvements to website suggested by
group, including path problem report form, annual strimming
list and information on long term path closures.

Initiation of project to develop web portal through which
volunteers can input network survey data into CAMS GIS
mapping database for use by officers initially, and, in the
long term, by the public via Interactive Mapping on the
Council’s website.

The multi-user route through the Carrs, Wilmslow, after the Paths for

Communities project

ROWIP Implementation Plan 2015-2019 29



3 Progress to date

Table 8 ROWIP project achievements 2014-2015

H2 T9 Paths for Communities Fund projects

e The Carrs Bridleway in Wilmslow:
H3 T25

e completion of signage to clarify usage, destinations
H7 and distances on routes in the area.

Ha e river bank stabilisation works completed to help protect
new Bridleway from erosion.

e Dane Meadow new Footpaths and Bridleway in Holmes
Chapel:

e completion of Improvement works on Public Footpath
which provides access to the Dane Meadow and
Cranage village.

H2 T117 Middlewood Way Station access
e Accessibility improvements for pedestrian access to

H3 Middlewood Station to encourage use of public transport
S7 option.
e Including path surfacing works, lighting and ramp to avoid
steps.

e Project scoping and design undertaken.

H2 X6 Public Health Transformation Fund
e Bid submitted for development of local promoted walk in
H3 area of Crewe where activity levels are lowest.

e Bid includes proposals for access improvements and
promotion via led walks and training of volunteer walks
leaders to maintain local ongoing interest.

e Partnerships with South Cheshire Clinical Commissioning
Group and GP practices, Local Area Partnership and
AgeUK Cheshire, to encourage walkers who will benefit

most.
H2 W65 Assistance to Local User Groups / Parish & Town Councils
H3 W91 Advice and assistance to local user groups in their planning of

access improvements and external funding bids, including:
S7 T25

e  Goostrey Footpaths Group proposal for dedication of new
S8 wa4 PROW.

30 ROWIP Implementation Plan 2015-2019



H2 169
H3

S7

S7 n/a
S8

H2, H3 X7

3 Progress to date

Bollington Initiative Trust proposal for dedication of new
PROW.

Cranage and Holmes Chapel Parish Councils assessed
demand for proposed off-road Bridleway between
communities.

Canal and River Trust delivered access improvements
between PROW over canal bridge and towpath at Church
Minshull, in partnership with Parish Council.

Congleton Footpath No. 23

Congleton Partnership submitted successful bid to Cheshire
East Partnerships for funding.

Route is Congleton Footpath No. 23, forming continuation
of Dane Walkway and Dane Valley Way.

Scheme to be delivered by Cheshire East Highways.

To improve accessibility as far as practical and to improve
aesthetics of route to encourage use.

Local Sustainable Transport Fund

Continued delivery of active travel infrastructure and promotional
schemes focusing on smarter travel within Crewe, including:

Destination signposting.

Creation of off-road cycle tracks.

Cycle parking and toucan crossings.

Development of Smarter Travel map in printed and online
formats.

More Walks for All Leaflet development

In partnership with Cheshire East Local Access Forum.
Development of leaflet suggesting 9 easy access walks in
the borough to supplement existing popular Walks for All
leaflet.

Most routes accessible by public transport.

Volunteers suggested suitable routes, undertook initial site
surveys, took photos and wrote up information for leaflet.
Agreement from landowner partners obtained, content
drafted and leaflet design and print commissioned.

H2 Various Planning Applications, Pre-Applications and Local Plan

H3 W90

Planning applications and pre-applications commented
upon from the perspective of active travel and leisure

ROWIP Implementation Plan 2015-2019 31



3 Progress to date

S7 X10 walking, cycling and horseriding, putting forward ROWIP
aspirations.
S8 e Developer contributions secured through section 106

agreements and unilateral undertakings.

e Input from Public Rights of Way and Countryside into
emerging Cheshire East Local Plan.

e Odd Rode Footpath No. 22 section 106: project to improve
Footpath access between houses, medical centre and
playing field, being scheduled for Easter 2015, in
partnership with Scholar Green School and Odd Rode
Parish Council.

e Towpath improvements in Elworth, Sandbach: preparation
for delivery of surfacing project to create circular walk and
ride options for residents of new housing development, in
partnership with Canal and River Trust.

H2 T37 Crewe Footpath Cycle Track Order
e Development of ROWIP suggestion from Local Area

H3 Partnership and Sustrans.

S8 e Proposal to convert status of Footpaths Nos. 3 (part) and
36 to cycle track on route used by both pedestrians and
cyclists.

e Route runs from residential areas of Crewe and village
beyond towards town centre.

e Project in partnership with Cheshire East Highways.

e Legal Order made and advertised: objections received.

H2 X15 Publicity to promote walking, cycling and horse riding

¢ Nantwich Riverside Loop: revision and reprint of promoted
H3 walk leaflet.
e  Gritstone Trail: revision and reprint of promoted walk leaflet.

S7 e Articles submitted for partnership newsletters, including
S8 NFU.

e Newsletters and social media feeds made for all news

items.

H2 n/a Mapping

e Assistance with mapping provided to Cheshire East
H3 departments, including the Countryside Ranger Service for
s7 grant applications and management plans.

32 ROWIP Implementation Plan 2015-2019



S8

H2
H3

S7

H2
H3

S8

H2
H3
S7
S8

S7
S8

T118

X14

n/a

Various

3 Progress to date

Assistance with mapping for third sector groups producing
walks leaflets.
Compliance with INSPIRE EU Directive ensured.

High Legh route to school

Contribution to project led by Parish Plan team.
Creation of a path away from roads, through an area of
greenspace.

To act as a safer route to encourage walking to village
school.

Local Transport Plan Cycling Schemes

Contributions to LTP active travel cycling schemes.
Cycling Seminars held to improve communication between
Council and local cycling user groups.

Cycling Champion appointed.

Development of Cycling Strategy initiated.

Revision of cycling webpages undertaken.

Cheshire East Local Access Forum

Secretariat duties for Forum, a voluntary body which
advises the Council on matters relating to countryside
access.

Priority areas of work progressed in safety on rural lanes,
publicity of the Forum and accessibility of the countryside.
Frequent newspaper publicity secured and national LAF
newsletter article published.

Rural Road safety meeting held with Parish and Town
Councils.

Forum negotiated changes to A556 new road scheme
designs.

Forum responded to numerous consultations, including:

e Canal and River Trust sharing towpaths;

e  Cheshire East Local Plan;

e  Cheshire East Parks Strategy;

e Department for Transport Cycling Delivery Plan; and,
e Natural England Dog Walking Advice.

A556, SEMMMS, Congleton Link Road, Poynton Relief Road
and Crewe Green Link Road Schemes

ROWIP Implementation Plan 2015-2019 33


http://www.cheshireeast.gov.uk/default.aspx?page=10024

3 Progress to date

e  Continued input of ROWIP aspirations into options and
designs to maximise opportunities for improving routes for
active travel and leisure walking, cycling and horse riding.

e Influencing road scheme designs and Side Road Orders
to achieve best possible outcomes for non-motorised users.

e Extinguishment Order made for section of Footpath affected
Crewe Green Link Road (Order not to be confirmed due to
change to road scheme).

H2, H3 X15 Discover Cheshire Website

e www.discovercheshire.co.uk.

e  Website promoting walking, cycling and horse riding routes.

e Also highlights nearby visitor economy facilities in the
countryside, such as refreshment stops and
accommodation.

e Partners include Visitor Economy team, Marketing
Cheshire, Cheshire West and Chester Council and the
Mersey Forest.

e Redeveloped website now mobile compatible and combined
with other websites to act as the ‘one-stop shop’ for visitors
to Cheshire.

e Amends and updates to walking, cycling and horse riding
routes made, as arising.

H2 n/a Rights of Way Consultative Group
e Twice yearly meetings between PROW team and user
H3 X16 group representatives.

s7 e Ongoing management of register of volunteers and

issuance of Letters of Authority for volunteers assisting with

S8 waymarking and minor vegetation cutting.

e Assessment of bridle gate catches undertaken.

e Links made with Cheshire East Local Access Forum.

e Updates provided on Deregulation Act legislation changes.

e Continued development of software for web portal to use
in a volunteer network survey to gather path furniture and
surface information.

e Data entered into the CAMS GIS mapping database would
then be available for use by officers initially, and, in the
long term, by the public via Interactive Mapping on the
Council’'s website.

34 ROWIP Implementation Plan 2015-2019


http://www.discovercheshire.co.uk

3 Progress to date

Progress against Statement of Action

3.13

3.14

The progress made under the policies and initiatives of the ROWIP have
been outlined above. However, a review of progress would not be complete
without a direct assessment of progress against the Statement of Action set
out in the first Implementation Plan. You'll find that below.

As you will see, some of these projects have not been investigated or
delivered fully, and that is due to the delivery of other projects which have
required officer and financial resources. As was explained in the first
Implementation Plan, other projects may be delivered in place of those listed
in the Statement of Action. This is the case, for example, when external
funding has been secured by a third party to deliver a project and this results
in resources being diverted to deliver that project, rather than one listed in
the plan.

Improved steps on Footpath No. 3 providing access to
the Dane Meadow in Holmes Chapel

ROWIP Implementation Plan 2015-2019 35



3 Progress to date

umo} Jnoybnouyy yied apisioALl
ajeald 0} wie s, diysiauped
uMO] Joj uaAlb poddng
‘Buipuny [eulsixa 810818y}
pue s)Jom |einjonJis Jolew

Aouaby

JUSWUOJIAUT ‘|IoUN0D
umo] uojs|buo) ‘dnoig
Alunwwo) ‘sisumopue]

aueT yeuueneH
pue 198.)S YeuueABRH Usamiaq

ssaibo.ud

siaujed

alinbal 0] Ajay1| Led ‘uawdojansp usamiaq yied ay} Buinoidwi uoye|buo)
ybnouy) painoas ajnou Jo ued Jo Aljiqisesy ay) ajebnsanu|  ‘Aepp Aojlep aueq S
paJnoas aq ued bBuipuny [eula)xa JI 1SNJ| JaAY ® ajdoad pajqesip 1o} Ajenoiued
paljijuapl 8)noJ dAljeuld)e a|qissod | |eue?) ‘siaumopue‘dnolo ‘Uiedmo) |eue) Aasiap\ pue = uomeT] yainyo
JanamoH ‘yjedjoo4 uo sdajs SS90V | Judl] By} OJUO peOY PJoJSINUY PIO | ‘Lt "ON Yiedjoo
salinbal ule.s) :passasse )i pajgesiq uo}a|buo)  pue yjedjoo wouy ssadoe aroldw| apoy ppPO  SEM
Solj1|10B) 8y} SS90k 0] SjudpIsal IO
SUTEIT] TELIERE IO (R el 07 cllpElEs Q.h.o_.g ow_ﬁmmﬁm pue wumﬁm mvw.vsemp
paau pue paAjoAul diysiaumopue| Jabes|y ‘[1ouno) umoy| - .5; o1 6L pue mc_._. Jes 1aBespy
Aued paiyy :passaiboud J0N Jabes|y ‘silaumopueT ST R T ST 0 oA0) bt S sEEn |
diuSIoULIE Bol sJasn Jenbal-uou
paysiiqnd-aJl pue pasiAal }9|jes| 250 U zr,_ e u.__ch m,m 0} 8JnoJ doo ay} |eubis 0}
pue pajelsul abeubis jeuonippy roo ._wc s Lﬁo>_ N oM W_m JBABA\N\ JOAIY BY) JaAo abpliq apo] doo apisiany
T OPISIONY UIMIEN 15180 1 oBeUBIS [BUOHIPPE [IEISU| YIMUEN  ZOM
speou Buipioae
s$s820e aAosdwl 0] pajenobau diysiaupned Jabes|y aUI JES B} JO pUS JoBES|Y 18BBS[Y Wiey
SUBIEIED ELRRAED STE IPUTES UL JEEES ay} 0} ssaooe buinoudwi ayebseAu]  Aiuno) aulyes LM

juawanosdwi paysabbng E "Joy

Bupjjem ainsid| - GL0Z-110Z d)ep o} ssaiboid 6 a|qel

ROWIP Implementation Plan 2015-2019

36



3 Progress to date

saijiunuoddo pue sanloud
Jay}o 0} anp passalboid JoN

sanunuoddo pue sanilioud
Jayjo 0] anp passaiboid 10N

palnoas
sueu}sapad 4o} sjuswarosdwl
AIqissa0oy ‘eAiioddns jou
1Ing ‘payoeoidde Jjeumopue]

ureb Buiuueld ybnoay)
1ybnos syjuswanoidwi Jayun4
‘pataAljep sjuswanoidw|

sanunuoddo pue sanloud
Jayjo 0} anp passaiboud JoN

diysiauped
Jabes|y ‘sAemybiH

MO|SWIIA\BI2AD
‘slaumopue]

MOISWIANBIOAD
‘louno) umoj
uojuhod ‘siaumopue]

dnolig Ajlunwwon
1SNJ] JaAlY R |eue)

Juswanoiduw|
yjjeeH ‘Awouodsy]
JOJISIA ‘Slaumopue]
‘skemybiH

Jobes|y
WIoJ) 9pl Je|nalIo B 8)eald 0} S)SIj9Ad 1oy
Jajes peoy Jabes|y bupew ajebsanu|

S]s119A2 0] 8|ge|leAR S8)N0J JO JI0M}BU By}
pusixa 0} skema|pug 0} syledioo4 asay)
Buipesbdn jo Ayjigissod ayj ajebisau

AeA\ POOMBIPPIN BY) YlM BA0ID
|9zeH pue uojuAod Mul| 0] sueaw e se

BUIjOU| S82ULId UO 8)N0.J SIY} 8Sn 0} S)SI[oAD
Buigeus jo Ajjiqissod ayy ayebisanul

yredmoy |eue) pjaisajooel ay}
ypum uomme|bng ui Buisnoy s}0auuod yoiym
Aema|pug uo sanssi abeulelp aAj0say

Aepn

JO Sybry o1gnd pue speod Jajainb Buisn
‘@)Iq Aq 8AI8S9Y alnjeN |Bo07 YieaH
uojaJalg yoeal 0} uoye|buon pue jadeyn
SOW|OH wo.lj 8ynoJ pajowoud e dn 188

Bul|2A2 ainsi9| - G1L0Z-110Z dep 0} ssaibolid 0} 9a|gel

llesseH
‘peoy Jabes|y

¢S 8 G¥ 'SON
yiedioo4 Asuaqqon

. ON
yjedjoo4 uojuhod

€ "ON Aemajpug
uoja|buo)

aAIaSaY ainieN
|20 uojalalg
0] 8}noJ 8j9A)

°10)

1O

€0

¢O

128

37

ROWIP Implementation Plan 2015-2019



3 Progress to date

Buiwooyoy
auou }ng ‘slsumopue]
0} apew sayoeoidde

S19pIy a1IysayD

‘Bulpll peOoJ-1J0 JO Bale a|gen|eA e
a1ealo 0) snjels Aema|plg 0} syyedioo

pJojsinuy
% Aepaqqop
‘lleyHe N uoHs|IO

[1ouno) pue sdnoub Jesn YMON ‘sieumopue]  Buipesbdn jo Ajjigissod ayy syebnsaaul | ul syledjoo4 oyioads | €ZH
‘auen
pue| Aued paiy} Joj pasu 0} anp SJ9)sIS uanag bBuisn siasn 1oj 9 "ON
3|geJdAI|ap JoU Ing ‘pajebisanul slapry aliysay) Aemsjpug uoua||O 0} SS899. apinoid 0} uou9||0
suondo juswaoidw| YHON ‘sisumopue]  yyed abpa pjaly o yied abisn e apinold | ‘BueT] SI8)SIS UBASS | OZH
}Jomjau
Buipunouins pue Aep) POOM3|PPIN Ul
saiunuoddo pue sanlioud sdnoub Jasn Japu  0JuUO SS829e BAIB 0] Snjels Aema|plig 0] LG 'ON
JBy}0 0} anp passalboid JoN  8SIoH ‘sieumopue] | Buipelbdn jo Ajjiqissod ayy ayeblysanul yjedijoo4 uojukod = QEH
Jaumopue] }JOMJBU JBPIM By} pue uoja|buo)
saiunJoddo pue sanlioud ‘uonjelnossy | aueT s,AwWwo] pue aueT yeuueaeH ‘ooedg uadp
Jay}o 0} anp passalboid JoN sAema|plig Joplog = YUM Uil 0} 8ynol Aema|pug e ajeal) allgnd S,uyorisS  8cH
Juswdojaasp uo spuadap
0S pue e} pue| aJinbal a|gejiene
p|nom ssad9e Ul JuswaAoidwl Jaumopue Sapl JO }IO0M)aU 8y} aAosdwi 0)
1Ing ‘padoos aoens ‘uonjeroossy | Aepp AgjleA ydinppig ayy pue Aems|plig LS "ON
yred 0} syJom juswanoiduw| sAema|pug Japlog 8y} UsaM}aq UOI}OBUU0D B d)eal) Aems|pug uoe|buo)  6EH

ssalbolid

siauped

juawanoidwi pajsabbng

Buipus asioy - G102-110Z @)ep o3} ssaiboid || a|qeL

aweu 9)Ig

J9Y

ROWIP Implementation Plan 2015-2019

38



3 Progress to date

uonewJIoul
uodsuel) ojlgnd apnjoul sja|jes| ainol
pajowold Mau ||y "UONeIooSSY ,SJasn
IleY 811ysayd PI Uim pajowodd pue
paysiiand jo|jes] SY[EAA 1Y pJofsnuy|

sajnol
pajowoud Buidojoasp sdnoub |Boo|
a|diyinw 03 uaalb aoiApe pue poddng

MO|SWIIAA Ul YJed suue) ayy
Ul ssao9e 21|qnd 10830.d 03 paje|dwod
SYJIOM UONESI|Ige)S Yueq JOUl

SS8008 JO 1ybL e aAey 21jgnd 8y}
4oIYM UO s8)noJ asoy) Joy ‘pars|dwo)

suolndo 8)noJ ainsia| pue |aAel)

JO SJUBPISaI MaU wWojul 0} Jodojonap
Buuinbal ‘suoneoidde buluue|d
Jolew |je 0} papiwgns uoneJidsy

sdiysiauped ealy (007
‘slapinoid podsuel; olignd

Awouoo3 JosIA
‘sdiysiaupied ealy 2007

diysiauped As|jep uljjog
‘Aouabyy JuswiuolIAUg
‘108l01d )17 Aasia

slaumopue]
‘sIaply a41ysayD YHON

suonesiueblio

UleaH ‘s|iouno) ysled g
umo] ‘sdiysiaulied ealy
[e207 ‘sdnoub Jasn ‘417

Aauinol

uinjal 8y} uo BulpAo 1o Buyem
pue spisemino podsued) o1ignd asn
yolym saynod bunowoud : ,syjlep
usal9), Juudal Jo/pue dojpaaq

sdiysiauped
Baly |BOO7 Yum sajnol pajowoud
JenaJio ysignd pue dojaasq

|e 1o} JOALl 8y} 0] SSad0e
Buinoidw yoaloud 8y Aesia|n

8)Isgem allysayn
Janoosiq 01 uo sajnoJ pajowold
,SJaply aJ41ysayD YLON Jajsuel]

[9ABJ) BAIJOR

abeinooua 0} SUMO} UIY}IM S8}N0l
BuijoAo pue Bunjjem s|gejiene
Bunybiybiy Ayolgnd dojereg

sjoafoud BuiINd ss0ID - GLOZ-110Z d)ep 0} ssaiboid Z| ajqel

,S91N0J usalb,
pajowo.d

e glo!
2INnsIg| [2007

100[01d
aJI7 Aaslia|\

sajnol
pajowoud
Buipl 8sI0H

SUMO|

LX

9X

IX

GIX

X

39

ROWIP Implementation Plan 2015-2019



sanunuoddo
Juswdojaasp ybnouyy
1ybnos JuswisaAul Jayun4

‘'yjedmoy jo uondope
s,dnoub |eoo| ybnouyy palalep

Awouo9a JoJsIA ‘1sni|
JaAIY B [eue) ‘[1ouno)

anuan
A1aA02sIqQ pue umo) 0) sabeyul|
poob 8jealo 0} gz-9z sabpliq

uojbuljjog ‘yiedmo]

3 Progress to date

Buiag syiom juswanoidw| umo] uojbuljjog = ‘yiedmo} ay} Jo aoens ay) dAoldw| | [eue) pIBLSIOoBIN | Sl
diysiaupued ealy |07
‘suesisng ‘diysiauped s)s119A0 pue siayem Joj} yjed asn Nied apIsloniy
A9jlen uljog ‘sdnolb  juiol e se piaissooel 03 Aingisaid [SJEEINEEET ok =1
dnoib Aunwwod |eo07 wouy yied Aiunod ayy ybnouyy pue /¢ 'ON
1SaJajul |BOO| 0] UBAIB 80IApY | ‘ue|d yslied Aingisaid alnol pue yiedjoo4 ay) epesbdn  yedioo4 Auinqisald = €Z1
911U8d UMO} 8y} 0} 8SO|0 dJN0.
sdnolb = |euonealdsl pue Jajnwwod jenuajod [oJEEITESE=T oo =1,
saiunuoddo pue sailioud AJunwwod |eoo] e se 9p-0¢ sebpliq ‘plolsajooel) ul ‘yjedmo].
JBY}o 0} anp passalbo.d JoN ‘1SnJ] JBAIY % |eueD  yjedmo) sy Jo aoeuns ay) anoldw| | [eue) pIBusSsooeN | drl
sjuawaAoidwi Jaypny
Jo} 1ybnos suonnquiuod Buluue|d
1SN 9]N0.J 8INSI9| PUB JB}NWWOD Se
"9JJUBD UMO]  JBAIY B |eue) ‘dnols)  a1judd UMO) 8y} O} SHUI| S1alo ajnol
pue uolje}s Usam}ag UoI}oauu0D Ajunwwo) ‘punoy | 8yl 'g/-99 sabpuq ‘uoyg|buo) ul | uoye|buo) ‘yredmo|
se panosdwi 81nol Jo ued umo] uoie|buo)y Yiedmo) ayj Jo aoeuns ay) anoldw|  |eue) PIUSSOdB €SI

ssaiboid

siauled

juawanoidwi pajsabbng

pajejal podsuel) - GLOZ-LL0Z dep 0} ssaiboud ¢} ajqeL

ROWIP Implementation Plan 2015-2019

40



3 Progress to date

S|00Y9S € puUe SaiiunWwod Usam}aq yyedmoy
diysiauped ul paaaljap 108loid 1SNJ] JBAIY R |eueD Mul| e se uonipuod yjedmoy apelbdn = youedg YoIMmsIppIN | 821
palojdxe Buiaq yredmoy eia a]noJ uodsuel) pue ainsia| Jabuo| e qul|
UOI}08UUO0D BAIJBUIB)Y “POAJOAUI ajeald 0} syued Ajunod ay) usamiaq | [Ied] |1IBY YO0|98ypA
diysisaumopue| Aued paiy sJaumopue] aJnoJ Bujosuuog e Jo uoneal) ojaullyes 1zl
Buipuny jeulaxe Jolew
alinbal pjnom yoiym ‘ebeuel) o0}
3ulj Joy dn umelp ased ssauisng
‘diysieuped jedeyn Saljljlo.} PUB UMO)
sow|oH Aq paJanlep joaloid [odeyn sawjoH yum spjaly buihe|d
[IV 10} Syled mopeaj\ aueq S|iounod ysiled |adey)  pue abejjin abeuel) usamiaq yied yul| jledeyn
ybnouy) paiaAlop a1nol Jo Ued = SSWI|OH pue abeuel)  asn paleys peol-o Ue Jo uoljeal)  SawjoH 0} abeues) Gzl
Buipuny |eulaixa Aemusalo
Jolew aJsinbal pjnom ab9||00 Aemuaals) yoimjueN UOIMJUBN-9MBID
0] JuI7 "pale|dwoo Aemusals) sAemybiH ‘suensng 0} amal) pue abs|j0o usamiaq yyed 0} )ul|
UOIMJUBN 0} 8Mal) Z1odauuo) ‘0b9]|0D yjeaysaseay = asn paleys peol-jo ue Jo uoneal) abs|j0) yjeaysseay  zZyl
1SNy p|aie Jaypny suoljeunsap
109(0ud Juswanoidwi | JBAIY R |eue) ‘A1o100S Jajnwiwo9d pue Aa|siq Ul sani|ioe;}
10} ISNU] JOAIY B |eue) pue syledjoo4 Aajsiq ' 8y} 0} 81n0J |9ABI} SAIOE Ue 8} ald 0) A9|s1g ‘yiedmoy
dnoub |eoo) 0} papinoid poddng | ‘|IDUN0) ysued Asisig | yiedmos ay Jo aoepns ay} anoidw|  [eue) }Sa104 dead L1

ssalboud

siauled

juswanoidwi paysabbng

aweu a)Is

41

ROWIP Implementation Plan 2015-2019



3 Progress to date

[IoUN0Y J8)sayD

Aunwwod yjm [ooyos

'8 1SS dJ1YysayD Bunjuil weyouip pue asswdld €L ON

paJaAlap 108lold = ‘ueld ysled aiawold usamjaq yiedjoo4 apelbdn | yjedioo4 atewold vzl
payoeau s1ab61) buluue|d usym aJjuao JuswAhojdwe

paJaAldp a9 0} ‘uieb buiuueld g1 odpijA 03 UMO} WoJ) Bulnwwod 6l ON

ybnouy} painoss |esodold = Jadojpas(q ‘Usumopue] S1s119A0 AQ asn Jo} apelbdn | yiedjoo4 yomsi|ppiN |- 6ZL
1098l0.d o} poddns Ajunwiwod

[eo0 -paynuapl buiaq Buipuny dnois  aoueusjuiew pue abeubis ‘eoepns LS "ON

pue padoos palinbai sylopN - Ajlunwwo) uoye|buoy  aaoidwi :uoyebuo) ‘eue sAwwo]  Aeme|pug uoe|buo) ZG1L

ssalboud

siauled

juawanoidwi pajsabbng

aweu ajis  ‘Jay

ROWIP Implementation Plan 2015-2019

42



Page 49

Prioritisation

Suggestions for new or improved access continue to be collated from the
public, user groups and other organisations. These suggestions are recorded
in both geographical and database format for ease of interrogation and
sharing with other Council departments, submitting through the planning
system and sharing with external organisations.

The suggestions have been assessed and scored through a prioritisation
methodology which was selected and amended by the Cheshire Local Access
Forum. This statutory body, the predecessor to the current Cheshire East
Local Access Forum, advises the Council and other organisations on access
to the countryside. The scoring reflects the policies of the ROWIP and the
benefits offered by the suggestion in terms of need:

improving access where current provision is poor;

improving access in a community where there is a high level of
deprivation;

improving access for disabled people, horse riders and cyclists;
improving safety of non-motorised users on roads;

Improving access to services such as shops and schools;

Improving access to areas of interest such as water bodies or woodland;
and,

Improving access which will bring about a benefit to the visitor economy.

The prioritisation methodology also incorporates an assessment of the costs
of the scheme in terms of capital and resources, and of the feasibility of
delivering the suggestion. In the following tables, the amount of staff time
required to deliver the project is indicated by stars: * low, ** medium, ***
high. Similarly, the estimated cost of the project is indicated by pound signs:
£ low, ££ medium, £££ high.

Those suggestions scoring high in terms of delivering benefits and scoring
low in terms of costs have been ranked to be taken forward. The top 5
suggestions in each of the leisure walking, leisure cycling, horse riding,
cross-cutting and transport-related categories have been selected.

Statement of Action

The following Statement of Action lists an indicative set of projects that the
Council aims to deliver within the 4 year period 2015-2019. What can actually
be achieved is dependent to varying degrees on the availability of funding
and on landowner agreement. The Council will need to retain flexibility in
order to take advantage of opportunities arising, for example, from future
development proposals or other partnerships. It follows that the Council may
deliver alternative projects to the schemes listed here.

ROWIP Implementation Plan 2015-2019 43



Page 50

4 Prioritising improvements

4.6

4.7

4.8

44

It is realised that funding from central government, local authority budgets
and other sources are likely to be reduced in the future. Therefore, the
importance of partnership working in improving the network and the need to
draw in external funds from other sources must not be overlooked.

The delivery of projects will also be subject to the organisational changes
that will occur within the Council.

Alongside these ROWIP projects, ongoing maintenance works and smaller
scale improvements will continue to be undertaken through the maintenance
budget of the Public Rights of Way team. These works are aligned to the
policies of the ROWIP as well as satisfying the authority's duty to maintain
Public Rights of Way. This duty is undertaken in accordance with the
authority's prioritisation system for different categories of maintenance and
enforcement issues on Public Rights of Way.

The Walks for All leaflet which details 10
accessible routes within Cheshire East

Walks for All
in Cheshire Fast

A eliitied o widlhs Par il dbdites. mobuding thaae
with pushchairs, whedchaivs ane rraibdbry oo

o v

ROWIP Implementation Plan 2015-2019



Page 51

5 Statement of action

186pnqg dIMOY

sJauped yim
piq Buipuny [eua)x3
196png dIMOY

suonnQLjuo2
Jadojans(
‘slauped ypm

piq Buipuny [eua)x3
196png dIMOY

suonnquuod
Jadojanap
‘sjoeloud skemybiH

sJauped yim
piq Buipuny jeue)x3
196png dIMOY

33

33

33

*¥%

X ¥

*¥%

pUNOIS) UOI}BaIdDY
uojbuljjog jo spuali4
1SNJ] JBAlY pue |eue)

diysiauued
Jabes|y ‘[1ouno) umoj
Jabes|y ‘sioumopue]

Aouaby Juswiuosiaug
‘diysisuped uoya|buo)
‘sdnolg Ajlunwwo)

diysieupued Jebes|y
‘lIouno) umo] Jabes|y

1SNJ| JBAIY pue
|leue) ‘dnois) ssaooy
pajgesig uo}s|buo)n

punoJb uonealoal pue yiedmo)
usamjaqg ssaooe olignd yees

saljl|ioe) ayj

S$S920E 0} SjuspIsal 10} 83nol
aAljoel)e pUB 3)es e apiAoid 0}
Iny D1V 8y} pue aui jjes ayj
uaamiaq yjed 3ul| 8yl anosdw|

aueT yeuueAeH

pue }9811S yeuueAeH usamiaq
usamiaq yied ay} buinosdwi
jo Ayiqisesy ayy ayebisanu

speou BuipioAe aul
)|eS 8y} jo pus Jabes|y 8y} 0}
ssao0e Buinoidwi ayebiyseu|

yredmoy

|leue) Aasla|\ pue jual] ay)
0JUO peoy pJojsinuy p|O pue
yjedioo} wol} sseodoe anoidu|

Bupjiem ainsia| - 61.02-G10¢ syoafoid pasnuoud 1 ajqeL

yredmoy

0} punoJg)

uolealoay
uojbuijjog

Jabes|y
led POO

uoja|buon ‘Aepp
Aa|len aue(q

Jabes|y Yled
Anuno) auijes

uomeT yainyo
‘L "ON uredjoo4
9p0Y PPO

89M

LY

G

LM

6EM

45

ROWIP Implementation Plan 2015-2019



Buipuny

$921N0S

[euloixg dnoio uonoy peoJ v 1e
‘sjoeloud BuioAo asysayn  YIoMiaN 9|0AD |euoneN Jo Buissolo  Buissolo jiel] ey
sAemybiHy 333 x| 1SBJ UINOS ‘sAemybiH Jajes 1o} saAljeuld)je a1eblysanu| NOO|9aYM PESY 21D
Aepn jo syybry oland
Juswanoldw| pue speoJ Jajainb Buisn ‘ayiq Aq
yjieaH ‘Awouoog aAIasay ainjep |ed0T] uojalalg yoeal 9AIaSaY ainjeN
JOJISIA ‘Siaumopue] 0] uojg|buo) pue |adey) saw|oH |00 uojalaig
196png 4IMOY 3 . ‘shemybiH wouj 8ynos pajowoud e dn }9g 0} 8)n0J 8|94 %0
Aep\ pooma|ppIiN
3y} Y}IM BA0IS) |9ZzeH pue
MO|SWIINBIOAD  uojuAod Mul| 0} SUBBW B SE auljou|
‘IoUN0D UMO| = S82Ulld UO 8)N0J SIY} 8sn 0} S}SI[0AD / 'ON
196pnqg dINMOY 33 « | UOJUAod ‘sisumopue Buigeus jo Ayjiqissod ayy ayebisanu)  yyedioo4 uojuhod (%0
yjedmo} o) eale ¢ ‘ON Aema|pug
196pnqg dIMOY 3 « 1SNl JoAly pue |eue) [elUSPISA] WO} SS800E paAcidw| uoylbuon zo
S1s119A2 0} 9|ge|jieAe sajnol
JO YIOM]}BU By} pudlxa 0] sAema|pLig A
MO|SWIIANBIOAD 0} syjedjoo asay) bBuipeisbdn ¥ G “soN yjedjoo
196pnqg dIMOY 33 xx ‘SIsumopuen jo Ayiigissod ayy ayeblsany| Aspiaqqo 1O

ROWIP Implementation Plan 2015-2019

Buipuny
leuajod

}S02  auwi}

pajewnsy Hejs sJaulied juawanoidwi paysabbng aweu 9}

5 Statement of action

Buio£d ainsia| - 61.02-G10Z syoafoid pasnuioud Gi ajqeL

46



5 Statement of action

syo09loud sAemybiH sisumopue Aema|pug Jo AJIA}DBUUOD 8Sealoul uoja|buo)
196pnqg 4IMOY 3 x ‘skemybiq 0} yied peos-yo 1o abioA apin0cld  ‘BueT poomsiuels)  JyH
VGZ ON
suonngLuod Jaumopue] sojnos  yjedjoo4 uoa|buo)
Jadojana( ‘uoneloossy  Buipl peos-yo asealoul 0} snjejs / L'ON Yiedjoo4
196png JIMOY 3 o sAkema|pug Joplog Aems|plg 0} syjedjoo spelbdn PlaYleM dWINH  SPH
a|ge|ieAe sapu
sSuoiRNQUIU0d Jaumopue] O ylomiau a8y} arosdwi 0} Aepp
Jadojanag ‘uoneroossy  AajleA ydinppig ayl pue Aema|pug L€ "ON Aemajpug
196pnq dINMOY 33 wxx sAema|pug Japlog 8y} ussamiag uoi}ddauuOD B d)eal) uolbuo)  B6EH
}JI0M}BU
Jaumopue] Japim ay} pue sue s,Awwo] uo}a|buo)
sSuoiNQUIUOd ‘uoneldossy pue aueT yeuueAeH yim ‘ooedg uadQ
Jadojanag 33 . sAkema|pug Japiog  Mul| 0} 8)nol Aemalpug e ajeal) ollgnd S,uyoris  8QeH
ylomiau Buipunouins pue Aepp
POOM3|PPII Y} 0JUO SS82E BAID
sdnoub Jasn Japu 0} snjejs Aems|pug o} buipesbdn LG "'ON
196pnqg 4IMOY 3 «x  OSIOH ‘sisumopue] Jo Aupqissod ayy eyebnsanu] yedjoo4 uojukod  OEH

47

ROWIP Implementation Plan 2015-2019

Buipuny jo
$32.N0S |elj}uajod

}S02  awi
pajewnsy jjels

juawanosdwi paysabbng

siauled aweu 9)Ig

Buipu asioy - 61.02-510Z syoaloid pasnuold 9| ajqel




1SNJ| JaAry uoneuw.ojul Ajjigissaooe
© |eued ‘Isni] |euoneN  |In} yum ybnoidog ay) punose syjem uoneuw.Jojul
196pnqg dIMOY 3 xxx ‘WNJ0 SS8J2Y (8207 Hoys jo jojes| Jayunj e ysiignd | AJjiqisseddy | 91X
ejep Ajjiqissaooe
aleys pue ainjded 0} yJomjau
sJolddns MO¥d 9y} uo eyep Aaains Jsjus
91EeM}JOS ‘SI9BJUN|OA  UBD S183JUN|oA Yyoiym ybnolayy S|o uolnew.ojul
196png dIMOY 33 xx dnoib Jesn |e007  SINVO Ui Joj [eyod gem e dojoasg  Ajjiqisseddy | 9LX
suonesiueblio yjesH [aAel)
sJauped yum piq ‘s|louno) ysied g - aAloe abeinodous 0} SUMO} UIYIM
Buipuny jeulaix3 umo] ‘sdiysiauned ealy  sajnod buljpoAo pue bujjem ajqejiene
196pnqg dIMOY 33 « | [B907 ‘sdnoib Jasn ‘d17 Bunybiybiy Ayolgnd dojereg sumol | pLX
Aauinol
uinjal 8y} uo BuipAo Jo Bunjiem
sdiysiauped pue spiemino uodsued; o1gnd
sJapinoud ealy |eo07 ‘siapinoid | asn yoiym saynod Buowold : syjepN  ,SeInod usalb,
Jodsuel; o1gnd 3 x uodsueds; o11gnd uaalo), Juudal Jo/pue dojana pajowold X
sJauped yum piq sdiysiauyed
Buipuny jeuleix3 Awouoo3 IoUSIA Baly |BOOT Yum sajnol pajowold sajnol
“196pnqg dIMOY 3 « | ‘sdiysieuned ealy |20 Jejnouo ysiignd pue dojgae@  a4nsig| |e207] 9X

ROWIP Implementation Plan 2015-2019

$921Nn0S }S02  awi

pajew}sy yeis

Buipuny jenuajod

slaujied juawanoidwi pajsabbng aweu 3)Is

5 Statement of action

sjo9foud BuiInNod ss0192 - §L0Z-S10Z Syo9loid pasniuond /| ajqel

48



5 Statement of action

Page 55

196pnqg dIMOY

ssauped yym piq
Buipuny jeulayx3g

siauped yum piq
Buipuny jeulaix3

sJauped yym piq
Buipuny jeulaixg

slauped yum piq
Buipuny jeulayx3g

33

ke

333

333

*XK

ETes

P

sAemybiH ‘@o1AIeS
Jabuey spisAnunon

sAemybiH
‘dnois uonoy BulpA)
allysayy jse3 ynosg

sdnoub
Alunwwod |eooT
‘ISnJ] JBAIY pue |eue)

siadojansq
1SNJ] JaAlY pue |eue)
‘diysiaupied uoye|buo)

diysisuped ealy |Bo07
‘suelysng ‘diysiauned
Aajlep uljjog ‘sdnoub
AJunwwod |eo07

‘ue|d ysiied Auingisalid

“YJoM}aN
3]9AD |euoneN pue |ooyas 0} 8ynol
Se pasn S| YolyMm |led] 0} adueljua peoy ypom|3 je
Je squey paddolp jo uonejjeisu|  [iel] ley ¥O0|98YM €L 1

"9)]N0J YJoMiaN
9|0AD |euoilBN pUB aIns|9| Jajes
e apinold 0] aul| asisap Bunsixa aueT Alsy)
Buoje suonosuuod anoidw o} qulduITyes LoLl

81]U82 UMO])
8y 0] 8S0J0 8)N0J [BUONESI08I pUR

Jaynwwog |enuajod e se 9y-0¢ [SJEITCET ] =AY,
sobplq ‘ploysajooe ul yredmoy ‘yjedmo].
ay} Jo aoeuns ay} anoidw|  |eue) ployssooel il
ainsi9|
pue SI18}NWWOD JO} JJUSI UMO} uoje|buo)
0] Yul| Se g/-99 sabpliq usamiaq ‘yredmoy
yijedmoy Jo aoepns anosdw| |[eue) pldysSs0oeIN €€1
S)S119A2
pue siayem Jo} yied asn juiof Nied opISIonly
B se plolsalooel\ 0} Aingjsald [oJEEIIESE=Tho o =1,
wou} yied Aiunod ayy ybnolyy pue /¢ "ON

ainoJ pue yiedioo ay) spesbdn  yedioo4 Ainqisald €21

pajejas-podsuel; - 61.02-§10Z s3oafoid pasyuond gl ajqel

49

ROWIP Implementation Plan 2015-2019



Page 56

Monitoring and assessment

50

We will continue to monitor the progress of this ROWIP and the subsequent
implementation plans through annual reports. These reports are presented
to the Public Rights of Way Committee of the Council and published to the

website www.cheshireeast.gov.uk/prow.

The Cheshire East Local Access Forum monitor the progress of projects
being delivered under the ROWIP and also receive the annual reports.

In addition, monitoring may be undertaken through national indicator sets
as these are developed and through the results of the National Highways
and Transport Network Satisfaction Surveys.

It is intended that the 'ease of use' random surveys will continue to be
conducted and used to monitor the maintenance condition of the Public
Rights of Way network.

Finally, the CROW Act 2000 set the requirement for ROWIPs to be reviewed
atintervals of not less than 10 years. Given that the strategy extends beyond
that timeframe, it is recognised that periodic review will be required and that
these Implementation Plans will in effect enact that appraisal.

ROWIP Implementation Plan 2015-2019


http://www.cheshireeast.gov.uk/prow

Page 57



Cheshire East Council

ble in other formats on request




	Agenda
	4 The Cheshire East Rights of Way Improvement Plan 2011-2026 - Implementation Plan
	CE ROWIP Implementation Plan 2015-2019 Final


